VILLAGE OF
CALEDONIA

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, October 28, 2025 at 6:00 p.m.
Caledonia Village Hall - 5043 Chester Lane
Caledonia, WI 53402

Meeting called to order

Roll Call

Approval of Minutes: Committee of the Whole — October 14, 2025

Public Comment - Provides a two-minute opportunity for citizens to voice opinions to the Committee
of the Whole. The Committee of the Whole cannot respond as this may conflict with open meeting
requirements.

Committee Updates

moawy»

Plan Commission — Nancy Pierce

Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee — Holly McManus
Caledonia Utility District Commission — Lee Wishau

Visit Racine County — Fran Martin

Other Committees — Tom Weatherston

New Business

>

Overview of the upcoming Comprehensive Plan update — Byran Walter, Southeastern Regional
Planning Commission (SEWRPC)

. Comprehensive Plan Stakeholder Exercise — Committee of the Whole members will participate in a

word-cloud exercise and a structured discussion of the Village’s strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities, and threats (SWOT) serving as a key step in assessing current conditions and identify
community priorities.

Resolution 2025-XXX — Approving and Authorizing the Village of Caledonia to Enter Into an
Agreement with Paramedic Billing Services, Inc.

Ordinance 2025-XX — To Amend Title 7, Chapter 15, Section 2, Related to Tax Exempt Reports and
Fees

Ordinance 2025-XX — To Create Title 5, Chapter, 3 Section 3: Regulation of the Sale, Application,
and Use of Coal Tar and High-PAH Sealant Products

Discussion on Electronic Communications Record Retentions

Suggested items to be placed on a future meeting agenda (with no action)

Adjournment

l|Page

The Village of Caledonia complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). All meetings are wheelchair accessible.

Contact the Village Clerk for special accommodations at 262-835-6414.



Committee of the Whole Meeting
October 14, 2025

1 - Order
President Weatherston called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. at
the Caledonia Village Hall.

2 — Roll Call
PRESENT: 7 — President Weatherston, Trustee Lambrecht, Trustee Stillman, Trustee Martin,
Trustee Pierce, Trustee McManus and Trustee Wishau

EXCUSED: 0

STAFF: Village Administrator Todd Willis, Village Attorney Elaine Ekes, Finance Director
Wayne Krueger, Human Resources Manager Amanda Ardis, Public Works
Director Anthony Bunkelman, Village Engineer Ryan Schmidt, Development
Director Peter Wagner, Police Chief Christopher Botsch, Fire Chief Walter
Leininger, Deputy Clerk Brittany Kickland, and Village Clerk Jennifer Bass

3 — Approval of Minutes
A. Special Committee of the Whole Meeting — September 22, 2025

A motion was made by Trustee Pierce to approve the September 22, 2025 Special
Committee of the Whole meeting, seconded by Trustee Stillman. Motion carried 7-0.

B. Committee of the Whole Meeting — September 23, 2025

A motion was made by Trustee McManus to approve the September 23, 2025 Committee
of the Whole meeting, seconded by Trustee Stillman. Motion carried 7-0.

C. Special Committee of the Whole Meeting — September 23, 2025

A motion was made by Trustee McManus to approve the September 23, 2025 Special
Committee of the Whole meeting, seconded by Trustee Stillman. Motion carried 7-0.

4 — Public Comment
The following people appeared to speak before the Committee:
1. Paula Pintar, 7348 Botting Rd — Comments ands questions about the Special
Comprehensive Plan Committee
2. Chris Atkinson, 6205 STH 31 — Comments and questions about non-disclosure
agreements

S — Committee Updates
A. Plan Commission — Nancy Pierce
B. Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee — Holly McManus and Michael Lambrecht
C. Caledonia Utility District Commission — Lee Wishau

Committee of the Whole - Minutes Page 1 of 2



D. Visit Racine County — Fran Martin
E. Other Committees — Tom Weatherston

6 — New Business
A. Resolution 2025-XXX — Approving the 2026 Village Fee Schedule

A motion was made by Trustee McManus to recommend approval to the Village Board,
seconded by Trustee Pierce. Motion carried 7-0.

B. Discussion on 2025 League Conference for Public Officials
C. Discussion on Coal Tar Use, Public Safety and travelling asphalt crews

A motion was made by Trustee Martin to direct staff to draft an ordinance prohibiting the
use of coal tar in the Village, seconded by Trustee Pierce. Motion carried 7-0.

D. Discussion on a policy for non-disclosure agreements

A motion was made by Trustee Martin to direct staff to look into the desirability of
creating a policy prohibiting village officials and employees from signing NDAs, and
prohibiting the Village from entering into service agreements with entities who have
signed NDAs, seconded by president Weatherston. Motion carried 7-0.

E. Suggested items to be placed on a future meeting agenda (with no action)
1. Village Administrator Annual Review - Village Board
2. Discussion on Electronic Communications Record Retentions and Public Record
Requirements

7 — Adjournment
President Weatherston adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m.

Respectfully submitted:
Jennifer Bass
Village Clerk

Committee of the Whole - Minutes Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-XXX
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA TO
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC.

The Village Board for the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI do resolve as follows:

WHEREAS, the Village has provided notice to terminate a contract it currently has for billing
individuals on behalf of the Village of Caledonia for fire, ambulance, or other services authorized by
the Village’s ordinance to collect payment for services directly from individuals, entities, guarantors, or
third-party payers, as applicable; and

WHEREAS, the Village desires to enter into a contract with Paramedic Billing Services, Inc. for
such services effective upon the termination of the other contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board that the agreement between
the Village of Caledonia and Paramedic Billing Services, Inc. forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein (the “Agreement”), is hereby authorized and substantially approved subject to final
approval of the form by the Village Administrator and Village Attorney consistent with this action, and
the Village President and Village Clerk/Treasurer are authorized to execute said agreement and the
Village Administrator and Fire Chief are authorized to take such actions necessary in furtherance thereof.

Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this day
of November, 2025.

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA

By:
Thomas Weatherston
Village President
Attest:
Jennifer Bass
Village Clerk

770272.001 (984)



Firm Name:

Address:
Telephone:

Fax Number:

Contact:

PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC.
BILLING AGREEMENT
FOR

City of Caledonia

Submitted By:

PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC.
395 W. Lake Street, EImhurst, lllinois 60126
(630) 530-2991

(630) 530-5099

J Kevin Hunter

2025



SCOPE OF SERVICES

The primary function of PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC. pursuant to this Agreement is
to bill individuals or entities on behalf of the City of Caledonia (“Client”) for fire, ambulance, or
other services authorized under Client's ordinances and to collect funds directly from
individuals, entities, guarantors, or third-party payers, as applicable.

Page 2 of 22



BILLING AGREEMENT
FOR
CITY OF CALEDONIA

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into between the CITY OF CALEDONIA

(hereinafter referred to as "Client”), located at 5043 Chester Ln. Caledonia, Wi. 53402 and
Paramedic Billing Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "PBS"), located at 395 W. Lake
Street, ElImhurst, IL 60126 each a “Party” and collectively “Parties” effective on the date of
execution of the Agreement by Client.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Client provides fire, ambulance, or other services authorized under Client’s

ordinances (hereinafter “Services”) for the residents of its community and the surrounding
community (hereinafter “Recipients”);

WHEREAS, PBS is in the business of billing for Services; and

WHEREAS, Client and PBS desire that PBS handle all of the billing functions for

Services provided by Client.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual recitals and the promises contained

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged by both Client and PBS, the Parties agree as follows:

1.

Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated by
reference into this Agreement and made a part hereof as if set forth in their entirety.

Incorporation of Attachments. All appendixes attached to this Agreement shall be
incorporated and made part of the Agreement as if fully set forth in the Agreement.

Procedures. PBS shall prepare all bills and claim forms for Services provided by Client.
Billing procedures shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in the attached
Appendix A. PBS shall send bills and claim forms to third party payers and/or to
Recipients/Recipient guarantors, as appropriate. Client shall report all collections and
Explanation of Benefits ("EOBs") to PBS on a timely basis, as provided in the attached
Appendix A.

Billing Guidelines. PBS shall prepare all bills and claim forms for Services provided by
Client pursuant to the Billing Guidelines set forth in the attached Appendix B.

Lockbox Account. Funds collected for Client by PBS shall be maintained in an account
at a bank designated by Client and in the name of the Client.

Page 3 of 22



6. Reports and Accounting. On or before the 15th day of each month that this Agreement
is in effect, PBS shall provide Client with an accounting of all sums collected during the
previous month, indicating the name of the Recipient, the date of service, the amount
billed, and the amount collected. Upon request, PBS shall provide Client with additional
information that is reasonably required to verify the accuracy of the accounting.

7. Administration. PBS shall be responsible for processing all documentation, as required
under federal, state, and local law, regulation, or guidance. If this Agreement or any
documentation prepared in accordance with this Agreement is subject to or requested
by any governmental agency, PBS shall have primary responsibility for complying with
such request and shall truthfully respond to all agency requests, with notice to the
Client, to the extent such notice is permitted by law or the applicable agency. If PBS
or any third-party service provider engaged by PBS receives any legal notices,
demands, subpoenas, or summons regarding this Agreement, to the extent allowed
under law and deemed advisable by PBS counsel or its third-party service provider,
PBS or it’s third-party service provider shall notify Client and give Client the opportunity
to review and assist in a response. PBS shall keep adequate records at PBS’s principal
place. Client and its agents shall have the right to inspect such records and shall be
given access to such records upon reasonable notice and at any reasonable time upon
Client’s request. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. PBS
shall preserve such books and records for the legally required time period.

8. Programming. PBS shall provide a separate and complete Accounts Receivable
program within PBS’s computer billing system for the exclusive purpose of collections
for Client.

9. Guidelines. Client shall provide PBS guidelines for sending the bills and claims. Client
shall provide PBS or authorize PBS to receive all information necessary to issue bills
or claims.

10.Fees. Client shall pay PBS a fee of 4.50% for all payments collected, based on the
payments received in the preceding month, whether payment is made to PBS or sent
directly by the payer to Client. When PBS sends claims to a third-party collection
agency, Client shall pay the collection agency fee in addition to the fee due to PBS per
this section. Client agrees to provide PBS with notice and documentation of any
payments directly received by it within ten [10] calendar days of receipt of said payment.
PBS shall issue invoices on or before the 15th (fifteenth) day of each month for the
preceding month; if the 15th falls on a weekend or holiday, invoices shall be issued the
next business day. Client agrees to pay each invoice within forty-five (45) calendar
days.

No other fees, besides those specified in this section, shall be paid by the Client to PBS,
for services to be provided by PBS to the Client pursuant to this Agreement.

11.Billing in Name of Client. All the billing for Services shall be in the name of the Client
and on its behalf, including indemnification from third-party payers.

Page 4 of 22



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years commencing
on January 1, 2026, (“Initial Term”) unless sooner terminated pursuant to this
Agreement. This Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one-year terms
pursuant to the same terms and conditions set forth herein, except as otherwise agreed
to by the Parties, unless sooner terminated by the Parties.

Termination for Cause. Either Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon the filing of a petition of bankruptcy, assignment for the benefit of
creditors or the issuance of a cease and desist order or other action by any appropriate
state, federal or local governmental agency or court of competent jurisdiction, which
prohibits or threatens to prohibit, in whole or in part, either Party from performing the
services required under this Agreement.

Termination Without Cause. Any party may terminate this agreement at any time by
providing at least ninety (90) days advance written notice to the other parties via
certified mail. Upon Termination, PBS shall cease acceptance of any additional
accounts from Client. The Parties agree that the termination will apply to both the
receipt of new accounts and old accounts by the Client. PBS will discontinue its
collection efforts on Recipient accounts already in its possession effective one hundred
eighty (180) calendar days after the termination of this Agreement. Additionally, PBS
will cease its efforts in collecting Recipient accounts already placed with any external
agency effective one hundred eighty (180) calendar days after the Termination of this
Agreement. PBS shall assess a fee and pass on any collection agency fees as outlined
in Section 10, “Fees”, on any amounts paid to Client for payment of a claim placed with
any external agency regardless of whether the fee was directly obtained by the external
agency.

Protection of Recipient Information. All records relating to Services rendered by Client,
including but not limited to protected health information (PHI) as defined under the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and all subsequent
amendments thereto, such as claims and run reports, shall be and remain the sole
property of Client. PBS shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations relating to
Recipient confidentiality including but not limited HIPAA and shall not use or further
disclose confidential information or PHI other than as permitted or required by this
Agreement, by law, or by the Business Associate Agreement attached hereto as
Appendix C.

Confidentiality. Trade secrets and confidential information that may be received by any
Party or its employees, directly or indirectly, that are exempt from public disclosure under
applicable laws shall remain the property of the disclosing Party and shall be kept
confidential by the Party to whom such trade secrets or confidential information was
disclosed. Such information will be utilized only for the purposes of carrying out the
services and purposes of this Agreement, and each Party to which such information is
disclosed shall cause each of its employees to comply with the foregoing. Upon
termination of this Agreement, each Party agrees to surrender to the disclosing Party all
trade secrets, confidential information, material, tangible items, or written information

Page 5 of 22



supplied by the disclosing Party. The obligations of this Section will survive the
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

17.Relationship of the Parties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement

or elsewhere, PBS is an independent contractor with respect to the Client. There is no
agency, employment relationship, partnership, or joint venture between the Contractor,
its employees, and the Client and/or the Client’'s employees. No one connected with
PBS, except in writing signed by the director of PBS has any right, power or authority
to act or create any obligation or binding promises or agreements, express or implied
except as specifically outlined herein.

18. Publicity. Neither party shall without the prior written consent of the other Party: (a) refer

to, identify, or use the name or any trade name or trademark of the other Party or any of
its employees in any advertising or communications in any form; (b) make publicity
releases, promotional or marketing materials, announcements, customer listings,
testimonials, or advertising regarding the other or any of its employees, this Agreement,
the services or any related activities, or (c) take any photographs, video or other
recordings of the property of each Party or any of its employees.

19.Payments to Third Parties. PBS shall comply with all federal, state, and local law,

regulation or guidance regarding political donations and charitable contributions.

20.Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding

21.

between the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes and replaces
all prior agreements, negotiations, and arrangements concerning its subject matter; this
Agreement is not subject to modification, alteration or amendment except by further
written agreement signed by all Parties.

Non-Assignability. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, provided, however, that
this Agreement shall not be assignable by either Party without the prior written consent
of the other Party that shall not be unreasonably withheld.

22.Non-Waiver. No waiver of any provision shall constitute a waiver of any other provision,

nor shall any waiver be deemed continuing unless otherwise expressly so provided in
writing by the Party against which the waiver is asserted.

23.Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is determined to be invalid by law or court

interpretation: (1) the Parties agree to attempt in good faith to renegotiate the
problematic provision to the mutual satisfaction of the Parties; or (2) if revision is
deemed impermissible, that portion shall be removed from this Agreement. In the event
the Parties are not able to mutually agree on modification of the problematic provision,
then either Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days written
notice to the other Party if the terminating Party has a good faith belief based on the
advice of legal counsel that the problematic provision creates an unfavorable exposure
under applicable laws. All other portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.

Page 6 of 22



24.Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin without regard to its conflict of law
principals. No provision of this Agreement shall be applied or construed in a manner
inconsistent with applicable federal, state, and local law, regulation, or guidance. The
Parties hereby agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with this
Agreement shall be tried or litigated exclusively in the state courts located in Wisconsin,
or in the federal district court located at Wisconsin Eastern District Court to the extent
permitted by law and a Party elects to file an action in federal court. The Parties hereby
waive all objections to personal jurisdiction, venue, and forum non-conveniens.

25.Compliance with Law. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, both Parties remain exclusively responsible for ensuring that any service
provided pursuant to this Agreement complies with all pertinent provisions of federal,
state, and local law, regulation, or guidance.

26.No Third-Party Beneficiaries. It is the explicit intent of the Parties hereto that no person
or entity other than the Parties hereto, except assignees as contemplated in Section 21
is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement
against either of the Parties hereto.

27.Notices. All notices that are required hereunder, of which either Client or PBS may
desire to serve upon the other Party, shall be in writing, personally delivered, sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid, or by a recognized
overnight carrier, to the Parties at the following address, (or at such other or further
addresses as the Parties may hereafter designate by like notice similarly sent). Notices
shall be deemed received upon receipt (if personally delivered), two (2) business days
after deposit in the United States Mail (if mailed), or one business day after deposit with
a recognized overnight carrier. If either Party chooses to use a recognized overnight
carrier to deliver such notice, then the notice shall be by restricted delivery and only the
person or persons listed below are the authorized signatories:

If to Client: If to PBS:
David B. Hill, Ill, President
Paramedic Billing Services, Inc.
395 W. Lake St.
Elmhurst, IL 60126

With a copy to:
J Kevin Hunter, Client Liaison
Paramedic Billing Services, Inc.

395 W. Lake St.
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Page 7 of 22



28.Subpoenas and Records Requests. PBS shall charge and retain fees as allowed under

applicable federal, state, and local law, regulation or guidance for reproduction of
medical records upon valid request. PBS shall charge Client a court appearance fee
of $100.00 for each instance that a PBS employee is required to appear in court or at
a deposition in any action related to the collection of a fee for Client.

29.Headings. The headings and subheadings in this Agreement are inserted for

convenience of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement.

30.Signature. It is the responsibility of Client (when Client’'s employees are providing

31.

Services) to obtain the signature of the Recipient or verification that it could not be
obtained for the HIPAA privacy notice, for consent to release records as necessary for
payment, for assignment of benefits forms, and any other documents required by
Medicaid, Medicare, or a third party payer (for purposes of this paragraph collectively
“Payer”) for any purpose including but not limited to establishing medical necessity. The
Client shall (a) submit to PBS all signatures necessary to properly bill Payers or

(b) verification that signatures could not be obtained. Upon receipt of the necessary
signatures or verification, PBS shall bill the Payer. PBS shall send Client a list of
accounts requiring signatures or verification. PBS shall also send an invoice to the
Recipient containing a signature form notifying the Recipient that the signature form
must be completed and sent to PBS for PBS to bill a Payer and that absent receipt,
Recipient is responsible for payment.

Overpayments. In the event there are any overpayments due to third party payers
based on Client’s acts or omissions or for which PBS is otherwise not responsible (e.g.
Client not obtaining signatures as required per Section 30 or Client not complying with
the law as required in Section 32), PBS shall not assume any responsibility or liability
for the overpayment and PBS shall keep the fees described in this Agreement.

32.Client’s Compliance with Law. It is the responsibility of Client (when Client’s employees

are providing Services) to ensure compliance with local, state, and federal rules,
statutes, and sub-regulatory guidance including but not limited to ensuring: i) crew are
appropriately licensed and certified, ii) crew are not excluded from participation in
federally funded healthcare programs, and iii) Services are appropriately documented.

33.Contract Interpretation. Each Party and its counsel have had the opportunity to

participate fully in the review and revision of this Agreement. Any rule of construction
to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not apply
in interpreting this Agreement. The language in this Agreement shall be interpreted in
accordance with its plain meaning and not strictly for or against any Party.

34.Non-Solicitation. The Parties agree not to, directly or indirectly, solicit, or cause or

induce on its own behalf of for any third party to solicit, for the purpose of hiring any of
the Parties’ employees to perform like services for the duration of this Agreement
unless mutually agreed by the Parties.

Page 8 of 22



35.Execution. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

36.Authority. PBS and Client represent that this Agreement is executed in accordance
with the requirements of their respective organizations.

37.Amendment of Terms and Conditions. PBS reserves the right to amend the terms and
conditions of this Agreement at any time by providing Client with written notice of any
such amendments, which shall become effective ninety (90) days after the date notice
is provided (as evidenced by the postmark or deliver receipt). If client objects to the
proposed changes, Client must notify PBS in writing of its objection and desire to
negotiate the changes within thirty (30) days of receiving the notice. In the absence of
such objection, the amendment shall automatically take effect as specified.

38.Screenings. The Office of the Inspector General (“OIG”) of the Department of Health
and Human Services (“HHS”) has the authority to exclude individuals and entities from
federally funded health care programs pursuant to sections 1128 and 1156 of the Social
Security Act. The OIG maintains a list of all currently excluded individuals and entities
called the List of Excluded Individuals and Entities (“LEIE”). Exclusion databases are
also maintained by state agencies that oversee the State Medicaid Program and by the
U.S. General Services Administration. Any health care entity or healthcare billing entity
that hires or contracts with an individual or entity excluded from federally funded health
care programs (“Excluded Person”) may be subject to civil monetary penalties (CMP).
To avoid exclusion and CMP liability, parties to health care contracts that involve the
Medicare/Medicaid claim development and submission process and other processes
affecting compliance with federal or state law need to routinely check exclusion lists to
ensure that new hires, current employees, vendors, and subcontractors are not
Excluded Persons. The primary effect of hiring or having an employee who is an
Excluded Person or contracting or subcontracting with an Excluded Person is that no
payment will be provided for any items or services furnished, ordered, or prescribed by
the Excluded Person.

1. Both Parties represent and warrant that they, their new hires, current
employees, vendors, and subcontractors are not excluded from, or proposed
for exclusion from, participation in, and are not otherwise ineligible to
participate in, a “Federal Health Care Program” as defined in 42 U.S.C.
Section 1320a-7b(f) (or any applicable successor statutory section).

2. Each Party shall not knowingly employ or contract with any individual or entity
that has been excluded from or barred from participation in any Federal
Healthcare Program.

3. Each Party shall be responsible for conducting a background screening at

least annually or as otherwise required by law for their new hires, employees,
vendors and subcontractors which shall minimally include:

Page 9 of 22



i. OIG List of Excluded Individuals/Entities available at:
http://oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/exclusionslist.asp.

ii. Any exclusion database maintained by the state agency that oversees
the State Medicaid Program.

iii. The U.S. General Services Administration Excluded Parties List System.
This list can be accessed at: http://www.sam.gov.

iv. An appropriate source for a state or local background check (e.g. State
Bureau of Criminal Apprehension, Bureau of Investigation, local Sheriff's
Department).

4. Each Party shall immediately, but no later than three (3) business days,
disclose to the other any results of the background screening that may impact
the Medicare/Medicaid or other government healthcare claim development
and submission process and other processes affecting compliance with
federal or state healthcare law.

5. Whether or not such notice is given, each Party may immediately terminate
this Agreement without penalty or any other amounts owing as a result of such
termination.

6. If either Party’s failure to conduct a routine check or make a notification as
provided herein impacts reimbursement under this Agreement or causes the
OIG to assess CMP which impacts the other Party under this Agreement, the
Party that was responsible for and failed to conduct the check or make the
notification shall be responsible to the extent permitted by law (i) for
reimbursing the other Party for services provided under this Agreement and
(ii) for reasonable costs associated with any OIG inquiries and investigations
related thereto.

39.Medicare_and Medicaid Enrollment. The Parties shall maintain and update their
respective provider status in the Medicare and State Medicaid programs throughout the
term of this Agreement. The Parties shall share all information required to maintain and
update their provider status and their employees’ individual provider status within the
Medicare and State Medicaid programs as new credentialing requirements are
mandated by those programs and program contractors.

40. Indemnification. It is expressly understood and agreed that each Party shall to the
extent permitted by law and to the extent the indemnitor has insurance coverage,
defend, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the other, its parent corporations, affiliates,
subsidiaries, successors and assigns, and their respective present and former agents,
officers, volunteers, and employees from any and all claims, liabilities, obligations,
debts, charges, settlements or judgments (including attorneys’ fees) arising from this
Agreement or the other party’s present and former agents, officers, volunteers, and

Page 10 of 22




employees attributable to the negligent acts or omissions of the other Party, its agents,
officers, and employees while engaged in the performance of duties under this
Agreement, provided that no Party shall have any obligation under this section with
respect to liabilities caused by the gross negligence, reckless, fraudulent or deliberately
dishonest conduct, or intentional misconduct of the other Party seeking indemnification;
and in the event that a final determination that such claims or liabilities resulted from
such party’s gross negligence, reckless, fraudulent or deliberately dishonest conduct,
or intentional misconduct is made by a court of competent jurisdiction, the indemnified
Party shall immediately refund such monies and expenses paid pursuant to this section.
Neither Party shall be obligated to indemnify the other Party for any claim or liability:
(a) involving a claim by one Party against the other Party; (b) to the extent prohibited
by law; (c) to the extent the Party seeking indemnification receives indemnification or
insurance coverage from any other source. Provided that a Party is not in breach of its
indemnification obligations hereunder, no Party being indemnified shall settle or
compromise any claim subject to indemnification hereunder without the consent of the
Party providing such indemnification.

Each Party also agrees to indemnify and hold each other harmless for any settlement
or judgment based upon the sole theory of apparent agency arising from the negligent
acts or omissions of the other and/or its employees or agents.

Notwithstanding the above paragraph, neither Party shall be liable to the other for
indemnification for, and each Party hereby releases the other from, any liability for
punitive, exemplary and consequential damages which may be suffered by such Party
arising directly or indirectly out of the performance of this Agreement, including but not
limited to the loss of use, loss of profits or business interruption (collectively, the
‘excluded damages”); provided that amounts owed as consideration under this
Agreement shall not be deemed excluded damages.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained within this Agreement is intended to
be a waiver or estoppel of the Client, PBS, or its respective insurer’s ability to rely upon
the limitations, defenses and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including, but
not limited to Wisconsin Local Government Tort Immunity Act that may be applicable to
the Client or PBS. To the extent that indemnification is available and enforceable, the
parties or their respective insurers shall not be liable to indemnity or contribution for an
amount greater than the limits of liability for claims established by law. Each Party’s
obligation to indemnify hereunder is subject to the availability and limits of applicable
insurance coverage. Under no circumstances shall either party be required to indemnify
the other for its own negligent or intentional conduct.

For purposes of any defenses or immunities to claims and liabilities to third parties that
the Client and/or its employees may be entitled under applicable laws, the parties agree
that, to the extent permitted by law, PBS will be deemed the agent of the Client or
standing in the shoes of the Client with respect to such defenses and immunities
available to the Client.

Page 11 of 23



The Indemnitee shall provide the Indemnitor with prompt written notice of any claim,
demand, or action for which indemnification is sought under this Agreement. Such notice
shall include sufficient detail to enable the Indemnitor to assess its obligations and prepare
a defense, including the nature and basis of the claim, a description of the damages or
relief sought, and copies of any relevant documents. The indemnitee’s failure to provide
timely notice shall not relieve the Indemnitor of its indemnification obligations under this
agreement, except to the extent such failure materially prejudices the indemnitor’s ability
to defend the claim. Upon receipt of such notice, the Indemnitor shall have the right to
control the defense and settlement of the claim, provided that no settlement may impose
liability or obligations on the indemnitee without its prior written consent.

Upon receiving notice of a claim, the Indemnitor shall have the right to control the defense
and settlement of the claim, provided that:

1. The indemnitor engages qualified legal counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Indemnitee,

2. The indemnitor keeps the indemnitee reasonably informed of the defense’s progress
and any material developments.

3. the indemnitor shall not settle any claim without the Indemnitee’s prior written consent
if the settlement: (a) imposes liability or obligations on the Indemnitee beyond the
scope of the agreement, (2) admits fault or wrongdoing on the part of the indemnitee,
or (3) includes injuctive or equitable relief affecting the Indemnitee.

The indemnitee may participate in the defense of the claim at its own expense. If the
indemnitor fails to assume or diligently conduct the defense within a reasonable time after
receiving notice, the Indemnitee may assume control of the defense and settle the claim,
and the Indemnitor shall remain responsible for all associated costs and damage

Page 12 of 23



This indemnification obligation shall be deemed to be contractual in nature and shall survive
any termination of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunto set their seal this 30" day of
September, 2025

CITY OF CALEDONIA PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC.
By: By:
Printed Name: Printed Name: David B. Hill

Its: Its: President




APPENDIX A
Billing Procedures

1. PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC. (PBS) shall provide electronic billing to all
governmental and commercial carriers, where available. Otherwise, PBS shall provide
paper billing on behalf of Client.

2.

PBS will bill all appropriate government or commercial third-party payers as agreed to
by Client or as required by federal, state, or local law, regulation, or guidance.

PBS will invoice all Recipients/Recipient guarantors as agreed to by Client or as required
by federal, state, or local law, regulation, or guidance.

PBS shall issue invoices on a billing form specific to the Client.

PBS shall bill for Client’s services in accordance with those rates determined by the
Client or as required by the appropriate federal, state, or local law, regulation, or
guidance. The Client shall provide PBS with current rates. For any rate changes that
may be implemented, Client shall immediately provide PBS with written notice of the
rate changes. 14 business day notice required.

Invoicing/collection activities will be conducted on the following schedule:

a. Immediate first steps:
i. PBS will verify patient insurance through portals, contact with patient,
contact with receiving facility etc.

b. Except as otherwise required by law, invoicing for Recipients with no insurance
identified or for which insurance billing is not applicable:
i. First invoice mailed within five business days after receipt of case source
data.
ii. Second invoice mailed 30 calendar days after first invoice.
iii. Collection letter 30 calendar days after third invoice.
iv. If there is no payment plan established, and the account remains unpaid
after the billing cycle has been completed, then the account balance will
be turned over to a third-party collection agency.

c. Except as otherwise required by law, invoicing for Recipients with insurance
identified:

i. Claim submitted to insurance carrier within five business days after receipt
of case source data.

ii. If no payment is received within 45 calendar days from claim submission,
an invoice will be sent to Recipient with message stating that there has
been no payment or correspondence from their insurance carrier, and to
please give the insurance carrier a call.

ii. If Recipient is a resident, the claim will continue to follow the procedures
listed above in “Invoicing for Recipients with no insurance identified.” If



10.

11.

12.

there is no payment plan established and the account remains unpaid after
the billing cycle has been completed, the account balance is written off.
iv. If Recipient is a non-resident, the claim will continue to follow the
procedures listed above in “Invoicing for Recipients with no insurance
identified.” If there is no payment plan established, and the account
remains unpaid after the billing cycle has been completed, then the
account balance will be turned over to a third-party collection agency.

d. If an insurance payment is received on behalf of the Recipient for the service
and a balance is remaining, PBS shall send its first invoice within five business
days after receipt of the insurance payment and follow up in accordance with the
schedule set forth in 6¢ above.

e. PBS reserves the right to change the procedures listed in this paragraph 6 as
deemed necessary for operational, business, or legal reasons.

PBS accepts checks and all credit cards and may, in its discretion and in
accordance with the law, absorb credit card fees to the cardholder.

PBS will set up payment plans where appropriate, consistent with standard
policies and procedures and in accordance with law.

All payments shall be sent directly to the designated lockbox to allow rapid
posting of payments. Itis the client's responsibility to notify PBS of any payments
received to Client within 72 hours of all payments, correspondence, explanation
of benefits, etc. relating to the services described.

PBS will submit a monthly payment receipt recap, and a monthly trip report
detailing transports billed from the previous month. It is the responsibility of Client
to verify these reports and provide PBS with any missing data.

It shall be the responsibility of Client to audit the billing rates charged by PBS for
the Services provided by Client on a quarterly basis to verify that the rates
charged by PBS are the correct rates. Additionally, should Client decide to
change the billing rates for the Services, Client shall notify PBS as required in
Section 5 and thereafter complete any necessary follow-up with PBS to ensure
that the changed rate is being applied by PBS.



INSERT APPENDIX B - BILLING GUIDELINES HERE

APPENDIX C
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on September 30,
2025 ("Effective Date") by and between the City of Caledonia Covered Entity”), and Paramedic Billing
Services, Inc. (“Business Associate”) (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).

1. BACKGROUND

Business Associate performs functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, Covered Entity
under an existing written agreement (the “Underlying Agreement”) and Business Associate creates,
receives, maintains, or transmits Protected Health Information ("PHI"), including Electronic Protected
Health Information ("EPHI"), to perform such functions, activities, or services (referred to collectively as
the "Services"). The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions of disclosure of
PHI by Covered Entity to Business Associate, to set forth the terms and conditions of Business
Associate's use and disclosure of PHI, and to ensure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of
EPHI that Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity. It
is the intent of Covered Entity and Business Associate that this Agreement will meet the requirements
of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), the American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-5 ("ARRA"), the Privacy Rule, and the Security Rule,
45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164.

2. DEFINITIONS

Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those
terms in HIPAA, ARRA, the Privacy Rule, and the Security Rule. Following are some of the key terms
of this Agreement.

21 Electronic Protected Health Information. “Electronic Protected Health Information” or
“EPHI” shall have the same meaning as the term “electronic protected health information” in 45 C.F.R.
§ 160.103, but shall be limited to the EPHI that Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or
transmits on behalf of Covered Entity.

2.2 Individual. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 C.F.R.
§ 160.103 and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
C.F.R. § 164.502(g).

2.3 Minimum Necessary. “Minimum Necessary” shall have the same meaning as "minimum
necessary" described in 45 C.F.R. § 164.502(b) and Section 13405(b) of ARRA.

24 Privacy Rule. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually
Identifiable Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and Part 164, subparts A and E.

2.5 Protected Health Information. “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” shall have the
same meaning as the term “protected health information” in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103 but shall be limited to
the information that Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered
Entity.



2.6 Required by Law. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required
by law” in 45 C.F.R. § 164.103.

2.7 Secretary. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the United States Department of
Health and Human Services or his designee.

2.8 Security Incident. “Security Incident” shall have the same meaning as “security incident”
in 45 C.F.R. § 164.304.

29 Security Rule. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of
EPHI at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, subparts A and C.

2.10 Subcontractor. "Subcontractor" shall have the same meaning as "subcontractor" in 45
C.F.R. § 160.103.

3. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

3.1 Use and Disclosure. Business Associate agrees to not use or disclose PHI other than
as permitted or required by this Agreement and any Underlying Agreement(s) related to the Services,
or as Required by Law. Business Associate shall also comply, where applicable, with the Privacy Rule
and the Security Rule.

3.2 Safeguards. Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards and comply,
where applicable, with the Security Rule with respect to EPHI, to prevent use or disclosure of the
information other than as provided for by this Agreement.

3.3 Business Associate's Reporting Obligations.

(a) Reports of Non-Permitted Use or Disclosure. Business Associate agrees to report
to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of the PHI not provided for by this Agreement
of which Business Associate becomes aware. Where applicable, such a report shall
comply with the requirements outlined in Sections 3.3(b) and 3.3(c).

(b) Reports of Breach of Unsecured PHI.

1. For purposes of this Section, "Breach" and "Unsecured PHI" shall have the same
meaning as "breach" and "unsecured protected health information," respectively,
as such terms are defined by 45 C.F.R. § 164.402.

2. Following the discovery of a Breach of Unsecured PHI, Business Associate shall
notify Covered Entity of the Breach. Such notification shall be made without
unreasonable delay after discovering the Breach, but no later than sixty (60)
calendar days after its discovery.

3. Business Associate’s notice shall include, to the extent possible, the identification
of each Individual whose Unsecured PHI has been or is reasonably believed by
Business Associate to have been, accessed, acquired, used, or disclosed during
or as a result of the Breach. Business Associate shall also provide Covered Entity
with at least the following information: a description of the Breach, including the
date of Breach and the date of discovery of the Breach, if known; a description of
the types of Unsecured PHI involved in the Breach; any steps Individuals should
take to protect themselves from potential harm resulting from the Breach;



a brief description of what Business Associate is doing to investigate the Breach,
to mitigate harm to Individuals, and to protect against any further Breaches; and
any other information Covered Entity is required to include in notification to the
affected Individual(s) under 45 C.F.R. § 164.404(c). Business Associate will
provide additional information to Covered Entity as such information becomes
available.

(c) Reports on Security Incidents. Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity
any Security Incident of which it becomes aware. Where applicable, such report shall
comply with the requirements outlined in Sections 3.3(a) and (b). This Agreement
serves as Business Associate's notice to Covered Entity that attempted but
unsuccessful Security Incidents, such as pings and other broadcast attacks on
Business Associate’s firewall, port scans, unsuccessful log-on attempts, denials of
service and any combination of the above, regularly occur and that no further notice
will be made by Business Associate unless there has been a successful Security
Incident.

3.4 Subcontractors. Business Associate agrees to ensure that any Subcontractor that
creates, receives, maintains, or transmits PHI (including EPHI) on behalf of Business Associate agrees
to substantially the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to Business
Associate with respect to such information, including but not limited to, compliance with the applicable
requirements of 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. Such agreement between Business Associate and the
Subcontractor must be made in writing and must comply with the terms of this Agreement and the
requirements outlined in 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.504(e) and 164.314.

3.5  Access to Designated Record Set. The Parties do not intend for Business Associate to
maintain any PHI in a Designated Record Set for Covered Entity. To the extent Business Associate
possesses PHI in a Designated Record Set, Business Associate agrees to provide access, at the
request of Covered Entity, to PHI in a Designated Record Set, to Covered Entity or, as directed by
Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 C.F.R. § 164.524. Business
Associate is not required to provide such access where the PHI contained in a Designated Record Set
is duplicative of the PHI contained in a Designated Record Set possessed by Covered Entity. If an
Individual makes a request for access pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.524 directly to Business Associate,
or inquiries about his or her right to access, Business Associate will either forward such request to
Covered Entity or direct the Individual to Covered Entity.

3.6  Amendments to Designated Record Set. The Parties do not intend for Business
Associate to maintain any PHI in a Designated Record Set for Covered Entity. To the extent Business
Associate possesses PHI in a Designated Record Set, Business Associate agrees to make available
such PHI for amendment and incorporate any amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated Record Set that
Covered Entity directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.526 at the request of Covered Entity or
an Individual. If an Individual submits a written request for amendment pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.526
directly to Business Associate, or inquiries about his or her right to amendment, Business Associate will
either forward such request to Covered Entity or direct the Individual to Covered Entity.

3.7 Accounting of Disclosures.

(a) Business Associate agrees to document such disclosures of PHI and information
related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a
request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with
45 C.F.R. § 164.528.



(b) Business Associate agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an Individual information
collected in accordance with Section 3.7(a) of this Agreement, to permit Covered
Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of
PHI in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528.

3.8 Compliance with Law. To the extent Business Associate is expressly obligated under
the Underlying Agreement(s) to carry out one or more of Covered Entity's obligation(s) under the Privacy
Rule, Business Associate shall comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to Covered
Entity in the performance of such obligation(s).

3.9 Internal Practices. Business Associate agrees to make internal practices, books, and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from or created or received by Business
Associate on behalf of, Covered Entity available to the Secretary for purposes of the Secretary
determining Covered Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule and Security Rule.

3.10 Mitigation. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful
effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in
violation of the requirements of this Agreement.

4. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE
41 General Use and Disclosure.

(a) Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or
disclose PHI to perform Services for, or on behalf of, Covered Entity as such services
may be specified in any Underlying Agreement(s), provided that such use or
disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule if done by Covered
Entity.

(b) All uses and disclosures of PHI must comply with the Minimum Necessary
requirements under the Privacy Rule. The Party disclosing PHI shall determine what
constitutes the Minimum Necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the
disclosure.

4.2  Specific Use and Disclosure.

(a) Business Associate may use or disclose PHI to carry out Business Associate's legal
responsibilities and for the proper management and administration of Business
Associate, provided that any such disclosures are either (1) Required by Law, or (2)
Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the
information is disclosed that it will remain confidential and used or further disclosed
only as Required by Law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the person,
and the person notifies Business Associate of any instances of which it becomes
aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

(b) Business Associate may use PHI to provide Data Aggregation services to Covered
Entity as permitted by 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).

(c) Business Associate may use and disclose PHI to report violations of law to
appropriate state and federal authorities, to the extent permitted or required by 45
C.F.R. § 164.502(j)(1) and state law.



(d) Business Associate may use PHI to create de-identified information in accordance
with the requirements outlined in the Privacy Rule. Data that has been de-identified
will no longer be subject to the terms of this Agreement.

5. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY

5.1 Privacy Practices. The Covered Entity will notify Business Associate of any limitation(s)
in its notice of privacy practices in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.520, to the extent that such limitation
may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI. Covered Entity will provide such notice no
later than fifteen (15) days prior to the effective date of the limitation.

5.2 Notice of Changes Regarding Individual Permission. Covered Entity will obtain any
consent or authorization that may be required by the Privacy Rule, or applicable state law, prior to
furnishing Business Associate with PHI. Covered Entity will notify Business Associate of any changes
in, or revocation of, permission by an Individual to use or disclose PHI, to the extent that such changes
may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI. Covered Entity will provide such notice no
later than fifteen (15) days prior to the effective date of the change.

5.3 Notice of Restrictions to Use or Disclosure of PHI. Covered Entity will notify Business
Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in
accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI. The covered Entity will provide such notice no later than fifteen (15) days prior
to the effective date of the restriction. If Business Associate reasonably believes that any restriction
agreed to by Covered Entity pursuant to this Section may materially impair Business Associate’s ability
to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement or this Agreement, the Parties will mutually
agree upon any necessary modification of Business Associate’s obligations under such agreements.

54 Permissible Requests by Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall not request Business
Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule
or the Security Rule if done by Covered Entity, except that Business Associate may use or disclose PHI
as set forth herein.

5.5 Safeguards. The Covered Entity shall use appropriate safeguards to maintain the
confidentiality, privacy, and security of PHI in transmitting PHI to Business Associate pursuant to this
Agreement.

6. TERM AND TERMINATION

6.1 Term. This Agreement shall be effective upon the Effective Date and shall remain in
effect until all of the PHI provided by Covered Entity to Business Associate, or created or received by
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, if it is
infeasible to return or destroy PHI, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with
Section 6.3(b).

6.2 Termination.

(a) Termination Resulting from the End of Services. This Agreement shall terminate if
the Underlying Agreement(s) under which Covered Entity discloses PHI to Business
Associate terminates for any reason, or if the Services that give rise to the necessity
of a business associate agreement terminate for any reason.

(b) Termination for Cause. Upon either Party’s knowledge of a material breach of this




Agreement by the other Party, the non-breaching Party must either:

1. Provide an opportunity for the breaching Party to cure the breach or end the
violation opportunity to cure the breach within thirty (30) business days, and if the
breaching Party does not cure the breach or end the violation within thirty (30)
business days, the non-breaching Party shall terminate this Agreement; or

2. Immediately terminate this Agreement if cure is not possible.
6.3 Return or Destruction of PHI.

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this Section, upon termination of this
Agreement for any reason, Business Associate shall return or destroy all PHI
received from Covered Entity or created or received by Business Associate on behalf
of Covered Entity, that Business Associate still maintains in any form. This provision
shall also apply to PHI that is in the possession of Subcontractors of Business
Associate. Business Associate shall retain no copies of the PHI.

(b) In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the PHI
is infeasible, Business Associate and its Subcontractors shall extend the protections
of this Agreement to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to
those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
Associate and/or its Subcontractors maintain such PHI.

7. MISCELLANEOUS

7.1 Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy Rule,
the Security Rule, HIPAA, or ARRA, or any other reference to a law or regulation, means the section or
law as in effect as of the date of this Agreement or as subsequently amended.

7.2  Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this
Agreement from time to time to comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule,
HIPAA, and ARRA.

7.3 Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section 6.3
of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

7.4 Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a meaning
that permits compliance with the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, HIPAA, and ARRA.

7.5 Relationship to Other Agreement Provisions. If a provision of this Agreement is contrary
to a provision of an Underlying Agreement or Agreements under which Covered Entity discloses PHI to
Business Associate, the provision of this Agreement shall control. Otherwise, this Agreement shall be
construed under, and in accordance with, the terms of such Underlying Agreement or Agreements
between the Parties.

7.6 Prior Business Associate Agreements. Consistent with Section 7.5, this Agreement shall
supersede any and all prior business associate agreement(s), or terms of other agreements addressing
the privacy and security of PHI, between the Parties.

7.7 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended
to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than Covered Entity or

Page 20 of 22



Business Associate any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.

7.8 Modification of Agreement. No alteration, amendment, or modification of the terms of
this Agreement shall be valid or effective unless in writing and signed by Business Associate and
Covered Entity.

7.9 Relationship of Parties. Business Associate, in furnishing services to Covered Entity, is
acting as an independent contractor, and Business Associate has the sole right and obligation to
supervise, manage, contract, direct, procure, perform, or cause to be performed, all work to be
performed by Business Associate under this Agreement. Business Associate is not an agent of Covered
Entity and has no authority to represent Covered Entity as to any matters, except as expressly
authorized in this Agreement.

7.10 Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by either
Party shall be given in writing: (a) by personal delivery; (b) by electronic facsimile with confirmation sent
by United States first class mail; (c) by bonded courier or nationally recognized overnight delivery
service; or (d) by United States first class registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested, addressed to the Parties at the addresses set forth below or to such other addresses as the
Parties may request in writing by notice pursuant to this Section 7.10. Notices shall be deemed received
on the earliest personal delivery, upon the next business day after delivery by electronic facsimile with
confirmation that the transmission was completed or upon receipt by any other method of delivery.

Covered Entity: City of Caledonia, 5043 Chester Ln. Caledonia, Wi. 53402

Business Associate: Paramedic Billing Services, Inc., c/o Privacy Officer, 395 West Lake
Street, EImhurst, IL 60126

7.11  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of Wisconsin.

7.12  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original and when taken together shall constitute one agreement.

Page 21 of 22



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized officers and made effective as of the Effective Date.

Paramedic Billing Services, Inc. City of Caledonia, Covered Entity
Business Associate
By:
By: Print Name:
Print Name: Title:
Title: Date:

Date:

Page 21 of 22



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-XX
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 7, CHAPTER 15, SECTION 2 RELATED TO

TAX EXEMPT REPORTS AND FEES

The Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, do ordain as follows:

1. That Section 7-3-1 of the code of ordinances for the Village of Caledonia “Cigarette

License” be, and hereby is, amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 7-15-2 TAX EXEMPT REPORTS AND FEES; CONDITION OF LICENSE

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Purpose. By July Ist of each even numbered year, the Village Clerk shall complete and
deliver a Taxation District Summary report (PC-226) to the Wisconsin Department of
Revenue. This report should summarize information provided by the tax exempt property
owners, with their report due March 31% each even-numbered year. The Clerk will make a
reasonable diligent effort to ensure that all tax-exempt property owners are sent the
registration form, and have returned the same. Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute §70.337(6),
if said form has not been received by the Clerk by March 31 of the even-numbered year,
the Clerk shall send the property owner(s) a notice, by certified mail, stating that the
property for which the form is required will be appraised at the owner’s expense if a
completed form is not received by the taxation district clerk within 30 days after the notice
is sent. If the completed form is not received by the taxation district clerk within 30 days
after the notice is sent, the property shall be appraised either by the taxation district assessor
or by a person hired by the taxation district to conduct the appraisal.

Fees. Since administration time of an appointed official and possibly other Village
employees to whom duties are delegated by the Clerk is involved, and since such workload
is due to the existence of tax exempt property within the Village, the Village Board
affirmatively states that it is fair and logical to charge a fee, as authorized under state law.
After consideration of the administration time involved, the number of tax exempt parcels,
and expenses to the Village, such as postage, copies, etc., the Village Board believes the
following fee is reasonable to be charged per tax exempt entity, regardless of the number
of parcels for each: Twenty-five Dollar ($25.00)

(1) Exemptions. The fee does not apply to a church that is required to file a report
under §70.337

License. Prompt payment of fees shall be a condition of receiving or renewing any license
issued by the Village to the tax exempt property owner, when applicable. Timely
submission of the required report is likewise a licensing condition, and requires accurate
information.

Forfeiture. Since prompt and timely submission of these reports to the Clerk is essential
to the efficient operation of this system and compliance with state standards, a forfeiture
as in Section 1-1-6 may be imposed by the Municipal Court for failure to submit Report



PC-220 and PC-227 to the Village Clerk by the deadline set forth in Subsection (b) above.
Enforcement may be by use of the citation procedure.”

2. That this ordinance shall take effect upon adoption and publication as required by
law.

Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this
day of November, 2024.

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA

By:

Thomas Weatherston
Village President

Attest:
Jennifer Bass
Village Clerk




Section
Number
7-15-1

7-15-2

CHAPTER 15

Licensees to Pay Local Claims; Appellate Procedures

Title Ordinance Date of
Number Ordinance

Licensees Required To Pay Local Taxes,  2013-04 02/18/2013

Fees, Charges, and Claims; Appellate

Procedures

Tax Exempt Reports and Fees; Condition ~ 2025-XX 11/11/2025

of License

SEC. 7-15-1 LICENSEES REQUIRED TO PAY LOCAL TAXES, FEES, CHARGES,

(b)
©

(d)

M

(1)
2
3)

ASSESSMENTS AND CLAIMS; APPELLATE PROCEDURES

Payment of Amounts Owed as Condition of License. No person shall be eligible to hold
any license or permit issued by the Village if he, she or the entity is delinquent in the
payment of any local taxes, forfeitures, charges, assessments, fees, special charges,
claims or other amounts payable to the Village or to any utility, district, commission or
other subdivision of the Village. No license or permit shall be issued for any premises
for which taxes, forfeitures, charges, assessments, fees, special charges or other amounts
are delinquent and unpaid, unless:

The delinquent amount is owed by the premises’ owner; and

The license or permit would be issued to the premises’ tenant; and

The premises’ tenant and owner have no immediate or extended family, business, or
financial relationship with one another other than as landlord and tenant.

Exception. This Section shall apply to licenses issued pursuant to the provisions of Title 7
of this Code of Ordinances, except Chapter 1.

Applicability. An application for renewal of a license subject to this Chapter shall be denied
pursuant to the provisions of Subsection (a) only following notice and opportunity for
hearing as provided by Subsection (d) below.

Appeals; Notice and Hearing. Prior to any denial of an application for renewal of a license,
including denials pursuant to Subsection (a), the applicant shall be given notice and
opportunity for a hearing as hereinafter provided:

O

2

With respect to licenses renewable under Chapter 2 of Title 7 of this Code of
Ordinances, notice and opportunity for hearing shall be as provided Section 125.12,
Wis. Stats., as amended time to time.

With respect to licenses other than those described in Subsection (a) herein, the
Village Board or its assignee shall notify the applicant in writing of the Village’s
intention not to renew the license and shall provide the applicant with an opportunity
for hearing. The notice shall state the reasons for the intended action and shall
establish a date, not less than three (3) days nor more than ten (10) days after the date
of the notice on which the applicant shall appear before the Village Board. If the



(d)

Chapter 15 — Licensees to Pay Local Claims; Appellate Procedures

applicant shall fail to appear before the Village Board on the date indicated on the
notice, the Village Board shall deny the application for renewal. If the applicant
appears before the Village Board on the date indicated in the notice and denies that
the reasons for nonrenewal exist, the Village Board shall conduct a hearing with
respect to the matter. At the hearing, both the Village and the applicant may produce
witnesses, cross examine witnesses and be represented by counsel.

The applicant shall, upon request, be provided a written transcript of the hearing at the
applicants expense. If the Village Board determines the applicant shall not be entitled to
renewal pursuant to Subsection (a), the application for renewal shall be denied.

Other License Denial Appeals. Where an individual, business or corporation wishes to
appeal the Village Clerk's decision not to issue a license or permit under this Title on grounds
other than those specified in Subsections (a) through (d) above, the applicant shall file a
request in writing with the Clerk that the matter be referred to the Village Board or designated
committee thereof. A public hearing shall be scheduled within fourteen (14) calendar days
by the Village Board. All parties may be represented by counsel. The Village Board shall
consider all relevant information and shall render a decision which shall be binding.

SEC. 7-15-2 TAX EXEMPT REPORTS AND FEES; CONDITION OF LICENSE.

(@

(b)

Purpose. By July 1st of each even numbered year, the Fown-Village Clerk shall complete
and deliver a Taxation District Summary report (PC-226) to the Wisconsin Department of
Revenue. This report should summarize information provided by the tax exempt property
owners, with their report due January-March 31% each even-numbered year. The Clerk will
make a reasonable diligent effort to ensure that all tax-exempt property owners are sent the
registration form, and have returned the same. Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute §70.337(6)

When-if said form has not been received by the ‘Clerk by March 31 of the even-numbered
year January—tst, the Clerk shall send the property owner(s) a notice, by certified mail,
stating that the property for which the form is required will be appraised at the owner’s
expense if a completed form is not received by the taxation district clerk within 30 days after
the notice is sent. If the completed form is not received by the taxation district clerk within
30 days after the notice is sent, the property shall be appraised either by the taxation district
assessor or by a person hired by the taxation district to conduct the appraisal retarnreeeipt

Fees. Since administration time of an eleeted-appointed official and possibly other TFews
Village efficer (deputy-—elerk)-or employees to whom te-whem-duties are delegated by the
Clerk is involved, and since such workload is due to the existence of tax exempt property
within the TewnVillage, the Tewn-Village Board affirmatively states that it is fair and logical
to charge a fee, as authorized under state law. After consideration of the administration time
involved, the number of pareels—per—tax exempt parcels, entity—and expenses to the
FewnVillage, such as postage, copies, etc., the Fewn-Village Board believes the following

_ - | Commented [JB1]: Statute is clear on this, the certified

mail notice of forfeiture is only sent after the actual deadline
of March 31. January 31 is not mentioned in statute at all.




Chapter 15 — Licensees to Pay Local Claims; Appellate Procedures

fee is reasonable to be charged per tax exempt entity, regardless of the number of parcels for
each: Twenty-five Dollar ($25.00)
(1) Exemptions. The fee does not apply to a church that is required to file a report+ - - {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", First line: 0" J

under §70.337 (1).

W v . } t y t t t o — ‘{Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or J
aﬂ_d_w’e‘@%abwﬂ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - e ~——-—--———-—-— | Commented [JB2]: The administrative work is substantial
(c) License. Prompt payment of fees shall be a condition of receiving or renewing any license whether or not the reports are returned on time. State law
issued by the Fewn-Village to the tax exempt property owner, when applicable. Timely allows the fee to be assessed (with exceptions) without it
Lo . .. . . . .. . being a late filing penalty.
submission of the required report is likewise a licensing condition, and requires accurate
information.

(d) Forfeiture. Since prompt and timely submission of these reports to the Clerk is essential to
the efficient operation of this system and compliance with state standards, a forfeiture as in
Section 1-1-6 may be imposed by the Municipal Court for failure to submit Report PC-220
and PC-227 to the Fewn-Village Clerk by the deadline set forth in Subsection (b) above.
Enforcement may be by use of the citation procedure.



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-XX
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE TITLE 5, CHAPTER, 3 SECTION 3:

REGULATION OF THE SALE, APPLICATION, AND USE OF COAL TAR AND HIGH-

PAH SEALANT PRODUCTS

The Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, do ordain as follows:

1.

That Section 5-3-3 of the code of ordinances for the Village of Caledonia

“Regulation of the Sale, Application, and Use of Coal Tar and High-PAH Sealant Products” be,
and hereby is, created to read as follows:

“SEC. 5-3-3 REGULATION OF THE SALE, APPLICATION, AND USE OF COAL TAR
AND HIGH-PAH SEALANT PRODUCTS.

(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have

the meanings given in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different

meaning.

(1)

)
3)

(4)

©)

(6)

Asphalt-based sealer means a petroleum-based pavement sealant product that is
commonly used on driveways, parking lots, and other surfaces and does contain
polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons.

Coal tar is a byproduct of the process used to refine coal. Coal tar contains high
levels of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons.

Coal tar sealant product means a material that contains coal-tar and is for use on
asphalt or concrete surfaces including a driveway or parking lot. These surface
applied sealing products contain coal tar, coal tar pitch, coal tar pitch volatiles, RT-
12, refined tar, or any variation assigned the chemical abstracts service numbers
65996-92-1, 65996-93-2, 65996-89-6, or 8007-45-2.

High-PAH sealant product means any pavement sealant product that contains
greater than 0.1% polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons by weight, including, but not
limited to, coal tar sealant products and sealant products containing steam-cracked
petroleum residues, steam-cracked asphalt, pyrolysis fuel oil, heavy fuel oil,
ethylene tar, or any variation of those substances assigned the chemical abstracts
service number 64742-90-1, 69013-21-4 or related substances.

Pavement sealant product, or sealcoat, is any substance that is typically applied on
paved surfaces to protect the surfaces. This may include but is not limited to sealant
products that are coal tar or asphalt based.

Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons or PAHs are a group of organic chemicals that
are formed during the incomplete combustion of coal, oil, gas, or other organic
substances, are present at high levels in coal tar, and are known to be harmful to
humans, fish, and other aquatic life.

(b) Regulations.

(1)

It shall be unlawful:
For any person to use or apply any coal tar sealant product or high-PAH
sealant product within the Village, except as provided in Title 5-3-3.



(©)

(d)

)

3)

4

For any person to allow a coal tar sealant product or other high-PAH sealant
product to be applied upon property that is under that person's ownership or
control.
For any person to contract with any commercial applicator, residential or
commercial developer, or any other person for the application of any coal
tar sealant product or high-PAH sealant product to any driveway, parking
lot, or other surface within the Village.
For any commercial applicator, residential or commercial developer, or
other similar individual or organization to direct any employee, independent
contractor, volunteer, or other person to apply any coal tar sealant product
or high-PAH sealant product to any driveway, parking lot, or other surface
within the Village.
It shall be unlawful for any person to sell, offer to sell, or display for sale any coal
tar sealant product or high-PAH sealant product within the Village.
Any person who sells pavement sealant products within the Village shall
prominently display, in the area where such pavement sealant products are sold, a
notice that contains the following language: "The application of coal tar sealant
products or other high PAH sealant products on driveways, parking lots, and all
other paved surfaces in in the Village of Caledonia is prohibited by Title 5-3-3, of
the Municipal Code of the Village of Caledonia, Wisconsin. Polycyclic Aromatic
Hydrocarbons (PAHs) are a group of organic chemicals that are known to cause
cancer and are toxic to aquatic life. Coal tar and other high-PAH sealant products
are a major source of PAHs that can travel into homes, buildings, and soils, or be
carried by storm water and other run off into the water resources of the Village of
Caledonia."
The provisions of this ordinance shall only apply to coal tar sealant product or high-
PAH sealant product within the Village and shall not affect the use of asphalt based
sealer products within the Village.

Exemptions.

(1

The Village Engineer may exempt a person from the requirements of Title 5-3-3 if

a request for exemption is made to the Village Board in writing, including an

explanation of why the exemption is needed for research or the development of an

alternative technology, and if the Village Board determines that one or both of the

following apply:

a. The person is conducting research concerning the effects of a coal tar
sealant product or high-PAH sealant product on the environment.

b. The person is developing an alternative technology and the use of a coal tar
sealant product or high-PAH sealant product is required for research or
development.

Penalties.



law.

(1)

2)
)

Any person who violates 5-3-3(b) by applying a coal tar sealant product or high
PAH sealant product at his or her residence shall be subjected to a fine not to exceed
$500.

Each day that a violation occurs or continues is a separate offense and subject to an
additional fine.

Any commercial sealant product applicator, residential or commercial developer,
industrial or commercial owner, or any other person, other than a person identified
under subsection (e)(1) above who violates Section 6.30(c) shall be subject to a fine
of not less than $1,000 nor more than $10,000. Each incidence of a violation shall
constitute a separate offense. Upon default of payment, the violator shall be subject
to imprisonment for not less than 30 days nor more than 100 days”

That this ordinance shall take effect upon adoption and publication as required by

Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this
day of November, 2025.

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA

By:

Thomas Weatherston
Village President

Attest:
Jennifer Bass
Village Clerk




M

Date: October 28, 2025

To:

EMORANDUM

Village Board

From: Jennifer Bass W%"/ VILLAGE OF

Re

Village Clerk/Treasurer CALEDONIA

: Electronic Communications Record Retentions

Public records are classified by type of record, not format. Electronic communications of public officials

that pertains to public business should be retained according to the General Records Schedule which was
adopted by ordinance earlier this year. Below are some example Record Series from the Wisconsin

Municipal and Related Records — General Schedule. However, to avoid accidentally deleting records that
should have been retained, it is a good practice to not delete any electronic communications that pertain to
public business.

Complaints (External): File related to complaints regarding issues not related to a specific program.
Complaints are not otherwise regulated by state or federal requirements.
o Event+2 years; Event=Complaint resolution, dismissal or end of litigation

Correspondence (Senior Level or Elected Official): Business-related correspondence (paper and
electronic) of senior level staff and elected officials.
o Event+6 months; Event=Separation from position/end of term
o Note: Correspondence that relates specifically to a program or project may need to be
retained per that particular schedule

Open Records Requests and Responses: Records relating to regular and reformulated, repetitious,
systematic or continuing requests by individuals, groups or organizations for access to general
information under the provisions of the Wis. Stats. §§ 19.35-19.37.

o Event+3 years; Event=Response provided

Petitions: Petitions submitted to municipalities for improvements or changes to existing municipal
services/structures.
o Event+7 years; Event=Petition approved or denied

Press/News Releases: Information about municipality programs and events.
o Creation+3 years

Subject Files (Senior Level or Elected Official): Subject files (paper and electronic) of senior level
staff such as department heads and elected officials.
o Event+6 months; Event=Separation from position/end of term



	Agenda
	Minutes
	6C - 25-10-23-Resolution Paramedic Billing Services Inc
	6D - 2025-XX - Tax Exempt
	6E - 2025-XX - Coal Tar Use
	6F - Electronic Communications Retention



